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ITEM NO. 1:

PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008 FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUl (C.c. No. 07-29)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: .. . (gavel). .. I'd like to call the Council Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for April the 5th , 2007 ... at the Lahaina... oh, "Lahaina", Lanai High
and Elementary ... (laughter). .. School cafeteria to order. Good evening, everybody.
. . . The Budget and Finance Committee is happy to be here to receive your testimony in
regards to the Fiscal Year 2008 Budget as presented by our Mayor, Mayor. .. Tavares. At
this time, I'd like to .. .introduce your Council Member from Lanai, Riki Hokama to
introduce the Members that are here tonight.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, we'll start with the lady... on the Committee, first, this
evening. From Upcountry Maui, we have Ms. Gladys Baisa.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... And then on the other end ...well, many of you, he's no stranger,
he was... he, he ... his past life, he was on the Board of Education for us from Maui,
representing Maui, and he now represents Wailuku--Mr. Michael Victorino.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And then ...we have from East Maui, Mr. Bill Medeiros.
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AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And then, of course, our Chainnan of the money committee .. .is
Mr. Joe Pontanilla from the Kahului District.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Chainnan Hokama .
. . . Again, tonight we'll be receiving public testimony on the Mayor's proposed Budget
for Fiscal Year 2008. Before we take public testimony, just a few ground rules--if you
could turn off your pagers or put it on the silent mode?
... Then the other thing would be when you come up to testify, you'll have three minutes
to testify... one minute to conclude. After three minutes, you'll be notified that three
minutes has gone by, and if you could conclude your statement in that one-minute
timeframe we would appreciate that. The other thing would be if you ... well. .. when you
come up to testify, please provide us your name and... organization that you represent.

.. .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
So tonight .. .(cleared throat) ...
Dr. Sharie Liden... Linden?

the

first

testifier

IS

MS. LIDEN, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Liden.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Liden. Sharie?
MS. LIDEN: ... Welcome to Lanai. I'm Dr. Sharie Liden. I'm a licensed marriage family
therapist and also a school-based behavioral health...mental health supervisor. I'm the
Coordinator of VSA Arts Lanai and a parent of a recently graduated teenager. So thank
you for the opportunity to express my appreciation for Coalition for Drug Free Lanai on
behalf of VSA Arts Hawaii Pacific and the school-based behavior health program at
Lanai High and Elementary School. CDFL has been much more than a drug prevention
program on Lanai. Because CDFL is an integral part of the community, the activities and
personal involvement with the families and youth on Lanai have reached into the
school. .. youth and youth programs, VSA Arts, and the families here. VSA Arts has
directly benefited from funding and active participation by the CDFL and its staff. The
funding has helped VSA Arts to expand its programs for youth and, and parents in an
effort to bring sustainable work-related art projects to our community. Thanks to the help
from CDFL and its staff, VSA Arts and Lanai High and Elementary School have created
programs to train youth and adult mentors in jewelry making, ceramics, painting, fiber
arts, and media production. I sincerely hope that CDFL will continue its important work
here on Lanai and that funding for such an essential program will not only continue, but
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increase in the years to come. I would like to ask that you continue the support... CDFL
through the line item funding of 50,000 dollars. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Sharie.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. The next testifier is Phyllis McOmber.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. McOmber approached.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Followed by Ron McOmber.
MR. McOMBER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: .. .(laughter) . .. I have to support her.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(inaudible) . ..
MS. McOMBER: .. . (laughter) . .. Yeah ... (laughter) . ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(inaudible). ..
MS. McOMBER: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. McOMBER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: .. .(inaudible) . ..
MS. McOMBER: Good evening and welcome, Council Chair and Council Members. We really
value your willingness to meet with us on Lanai. I'm Phyllis McOmber, Board Member
of the Lanai Women's Center. The Center is a tax-exempt nonprofit organization with a
focus on physical, emotional, intellectual, and spiritual welfare. The mission is to care
for the community. The Lanai Women's Center is doing business as the Lanai
Community Health Center. Presently with a 10-member Board of Directors, we were
A community health center is a
incorporated as a 501(c)(3) in 205 [sic].
community-governed nonprofit health care provider that provides basic primary care and
preventative health services, including medical, dental, mental health, substance abuse;
and enabling services such as outreach, case management, language interpretation, and
transportation. The Center will serve all people regardless of their ability to pay.
The ... major health care challenges ... are many .. .(sigh) . .. and it's usually prenatal
care, women's health services, pediatric asthma, very poor dental heath, drug abuse,
obesity, high teen birth rates, diabetes, and also an elderly population in need of
community-based support. The Center anticipates becoming a Federally qualified
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community health center in 2007. We hope to supplement and complement the health
care services already available on the island. Presently, we have two employees--a
project director, also an outreach worker. The outreach worker assists those who are not
aware of the services that they're entitled to. She assists in filling out applications and
directs them to health care opportunities. In December alone, she contacted over 90
residents. The island of Lanai has been designated as a "medically underserved
population" and a "health professional shortage area" for primary care. With a
population of 3,200, Lanai is the only major island that does not have a Federally
qualified health center. The target population consists of everyone on Lanai who lives
un, below the 200 percent of the Federal poverty level, or nearly 40 percent of our
population--1,288 individuals. The Molokai Women's Center has been serving our
community, providing cancer screenings, pap smears, prenatal and gynecological
consultations. But due to limited space, their services were attempted on a quarter-MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MS. McOMBER: --quarterly basis and at times had to be rescheduled. One of Lanai's greatest
needs is physical space. Castle and Cooke has been wonderful. They've provided a
small one-bedroom apartment for us to rent, and a site designated for the permanent
structure for a dollar a year for 25 years. We've asked for a legislative grant in aid to
build the firm, the permanent facility. Last year, you awarded a 75,000 dollar line item
grant for our portable. We don't have it yet, but we're, we're almost there. We believe
we have one. The only thing is it's gonna be more than what we thought. It's gonna be
125,000 to have it ready to open the door. We've asked for 24,999 from OHA. So
we're, we're asking for you to consider another 25,000 so that the facility will be, open
its doors-MR. RAATZ: Four minutes.
MS. McOMBER: --to the community. With assistance from Maui County, in-kind donations,
and OHA, the dream of a community health center will become a reality. Thank you for
your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Phyllis.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Phyllis, if you could ... possibly give us that testimony that you have?
And we'll share it with the Members of the Committee that are not here tonight.
Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ms. McOmber, you mentioned .. .in-kind. When you
... (inaudible) . .. in-kind, that will help with what, renovation or construction, depending
what you are able to come up with?

-5-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 5, 2007
Lanai High and Elementary School Cafeteria

MS. McOMBER: Yes, we have, we have people who are working, who've worked on the site
plan and who have ...we need... a structnral coordinator-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MS. McOMBER: --a construction...manager. And he's given us a bid, but he wants to be able
to do in-kind. So we're, we're counting on that. I don't have a, I don't have a paper with
that ... (inaudible due to interruption)-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
location, everything all set?

So do you have a design already and ... and a

MS. McOMBER: There's one ...there's one lot on Lanai that's available for a temporary.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I see.
MS. McOMBER: And that, all the infrastructure is there, all we're waiting for is the ability to
move a facility from where it is now to there and have it ready. But the bids are up to
125.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: To, to move that structure and, and set it up to what your
standards would be?
MS. McOMBER: Yes. And we have the, we have the lot for the permanent structure from
Castle and Cooke for a dollar year for 25 years. We have that design ready to go. And
we're hoping that the Legislature will be kind and give us money for the site
development. And, and we have a donor who has offered to help us fundraise for the
balance.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Ms. McOmber. Appreciate it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Thank you, again .
. . . Oh, I'm sorry, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... Hi.
MS. McOMBER: Hello.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You know, having had the pleasure of trying to do what you're
doing many times .. .I really admire you for trying to build a facility. It's no small
feat . .. you know, trying to find a place to put it and then trying to do it. And always
there seems to be a shortfall when we estimate because what I'm seeing in the
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construction industry is prices change on materials almost daily. And so we estimate to
our best of our ability at one time and maybe a year later things are totally different. So I
certainly understand. I'm very interested. You said you made an application to OHA?
MS. McOMBER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: How good does that look?
MS. McOMBER: They were very encouraging. And .. .it's the under, you know, we didn't go
for the 100,000, but we went for the 24,999 because ...we, we were, went to two
trainings. And they said if you need something critical and if we have some money
leftover from last year, there's a possibility that we can support you. And we've had over
70 Hawaiian women be served through the pap smear and the ... the women's health
program over the years, so we gave them that number. And we have 50 elderly. And
their health care goal is to serve the elderly in the community. So we're, we felt like we
were...we were gonna meet their goals.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well, it certainly sounds like you're fulfilling a very critical need
in the community. And you answered by question that I was gonna ask you about the
Hawaiians being served because they use that as, pretty much as a criteria in awarding
grants.
MS. McOMBER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Sounds like you're okay. Thank you.
MS. McOMBER: Thank you.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Ron McOmber, followed by Joelle Aoki.
NOTE:

Pause.

MR. McOMBER: ... Aloha.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MR. McOMBER: Welcome, new Council Members .. .{laughter} . .. Where the heck's, are
everybody else?
ALL: .. . (laughter) . ..
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MR. McOMBER: I like to see you more than once or twice a year, folks, so come and see us.
And also be lenient with these people that's got stuff to say because we don't see you
folks over here very often, so the "three minutes", the "four minutes" kinda, if they fudge
on it, give it to 'em because they really need to say what they need to say. Again, support
our youth, support our seniors. I'd like to see some funding--and I understand from Riki
that. .. there is some funding for Akaku to be over here and tape some of our major
planning commission meetings. 'Cause we can have some bam burners over here just
like they have on Molokai. But nobody hears about 'em. So we would really
encourage--and I've asked for this every year--to get funding for Akaku to get over here
and do some ... some taping of these, some of these meetings. They should be, probably,
taping this one . .. so that they can see what Lanai people are asking for. We have a... a
little pu-pa going on here with our trash collection. We have automated trash collection
on Lanai ...just like you do in Lahaina and a couple other places. In our contract, our
contract says they'll be two pickups a week. There, we only get one pickUp. The way to
solve that is either--and, and I don't wanna have the trash guys upset with me, the guys
that doing the collection. The way to solve that would be to give us two containers... for
the people that want two containers. We'll still stick with the one collection a week, but
if we had two containers--and some of us need two containers. And some, like senior
citizens that are living by themselves, they don't need but haifa container. So let's see if
we can work out something that we ean get either a second container or we get the
second pickup. We're paying for two pickups. That's what our contract says .
. . . Keep in mind, ladies and gentlemen, in the Budget, we need money for a new landfill.
We're, we're just about getting to the point where that eat pooping on the roof and trying
to cover it is just about to that point. We really need a new landfill. They say it's good
'til 2010. I don't believe that in a heartbeat. And that guys down there are having a hard
time covering. They're having a hard time with it, the workers at the landfill. We need
money for a new landfill .
. . . In the works at the planning commission meetings you're, they're talking about, we
have 65 acres of land for affordable housing that was given to this community through
the Land Use Commission hearings on the development. We're gonna talk about how we
gonna transfer that title over to make it affordable land for affordable housing. So keep
that in the back of your mind. We may be coming to you for monies for infrastructure
monies or something down, down the road. We're right now in the midst of our GPAC
meetings. GPAC meetings are going very well on Lanai. We don't have the
political. .. upheaval that's going on .. . (laughter) . .. in Maui right now. So we're, we're
really, we're moving along on this, going really great. I can see all kinds of stuff is
gonna be changed. Lanai doesn't have much to say about Maui GPAC, but there's a lot
of related stuff that, that we don't want to have influence on Lanai, and we're trying to
point those things out. We also have a water bill from the House ... 715, which .. .if it
passes, the State is gonna pick up some water, pay for some agricultural water. And
David Murdock has promised me personally that he'll match that. So if we get 25 cents
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from the State, we'll get 25 cents from Murdock. And that'll bring the water prices down
for only ag use. We-MR. RAATZ: Three minutes.
MR. McOMBER: We have a lOO-acre ag park. .. but we can't use it because nobody can afford
to pay for the water.
· .. Fire Department. You guys have got money in this year for, to cover their equipment.
That's good.
· .. We need a DMV office, folks. We only have a lady over here twice a week, uh, two
times a week. .. on Tuesdays and Wednesdays. We need to have that move along, so I'd
like to have you folks see if we can't get that first. I understand they've interviewed
some people, but we need a permanent DMV person on this island ... five days a week.
Please . . .I'm asking and I think we... we could support two Sergeants. We don't even
have one Sergeant right now. We had one retire ... and nobody's taking his place yet.
But I really would like to see two Sergeants on this island.
MR. RAATZ: Four minutes.
MR. McOMBER: .. , Senior center repairs. It's been paid for and it's all done, but it's not
getting done. Would you folks please put some pressure behind that and find out why
that senior center. .. right across the street over here is not getting finished? Looks like
hell.
· .. We also, we've asked for this before, ladies and gentlemen... a youth center on Lanai
is important. We, we've lost it a couple years ago. We need to have a youth center. So
start thinking about putting that in the Budget. And we also need some kind of car
storage so that the police can impound these cars that are derelict on the street and... can
be put somewhere. Whether it's in conjunction with the landfill, I don't care what it is,
but the police hands are tied. They cannot take these vehicles offthe street ifthey cannot
secure 'em. And it's a real pain. It's an ugly, ugly mess. And if you wanna go look at
one, go Third and Ilima Street, and you'll see what I'm talking about.
· .. Other than that, thank you very much. And I appreciate you folks being here.
· .. All these folks out here, they're gonna give you their testimony. They're the experts
and their, in their fields. Take their. .. their knowledge and... we appreciate all you can
do for us. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ron.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for Mr. McOmber?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: .. . (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Hang on.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ... Mr. McOmber, thank you for your testimony. Botb
Member Victorino and I are Co-Chairs of the Public Works ... and the Facilities
Committee. So we'll look into things about the Public Works--the trash collection you
mentioned, the landfill. .. and the other. . .issues that you mentioned about public works.
We'll look into it and try get back to you.
MR. McOMBER: We're not, I'm not trying to get the guys in Public Works in trouble because-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No-MR. McOMBER: --they, they could only do so much.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MR. McOMBER: And actually if you wanna talk about Public Works, they need some kind ofa
shed down there at the landfill so they could put their equipment underneath cover.
'Cause it sits out in the hot sun all the time and in the weather. And this equipment goes
to hell in hand basket really quick. That's a lot of money that's going out the window.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Yeah, we'll be in touch with them. You know, I
worked for Public Works for 31 years-MR. McOMBER: Yeah, I know.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --on Maui. So I know the people that work for you-MR. McOMBER: Great.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --out here in Lanai. So we'll be in touch with them. Thank
you.
MR. McOMBER: Okay. Thank you very much. Appreciate that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank, thank you, Mr. McOmber. Member Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: ... Thank you, Mr. McOmber. I'm very interested in your
GP AC. I've been following the Maui GPAC very closely and trying to attend most of
their meetings where I sit as an observer. And I'm interested in knowing where you guys
are in the process. Have you finished getting through the Countywide policy plan?
MR. McOMBER: We're ...we're just about to wrap it up. I, I understand--we had a meeting the
other night. ..on the 3'd ...what's gonna make, hold this up a little bit is when they got
into transportation segment of it. I understand the GPAC in Maui said wait a minute
here, it's way too short of, of... they wanted it broke into harbors, airport, and ground
transportation. I understand that because we're having trouble with our airports, we're
having... you know, we're blessed because our harbors are now being repaired. But
what's gonna happen in Kahului Harbor with the Superferry and they, I mean it's a, it's a
outrage what's going on. So they need to break this down into, each one of those should
have a separate page with objection, uh, objectives and everything. But I understand that
maybe ...we didn't get to discuss that. The reason is that they wauna see what this
overall package is gonna look like when they change that, that structure.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: I see. 'Cause I heard you were doing really well. So-MR. McOMBER: We're doing very well.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: That's great. And thank you for your service. You know, this
GP AC process is good, is really a hard job. It takes a lot of time and attention. So 1. . .I
am very appreciative of people that are doing it.
MR. McOMBER: Well, it's almost a year. Once you go through the GPAC and then go in the
community plan, it's 120 days for the GPAC, and 180 days. So there, you got 300 days
out of365. We're gonna be working on community plan. And I encourage everybody in
this audience ...that they've got a question about their community, they need to come out
and listen to what's going on.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Sure do. And thank you very much.
MR. McOMBER: You're very welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair? One quick question. Ron ...what do you have
as far as ... the Police Department here, what do you have? You, you said you're short
two Sergeants, you have no Sergeants. So what do we have here?
MR. McOMBER: Well, we just had a Sergeant retire.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, okay, I got that.
MR. McOMBER: And so we need a replacement for him.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. McOMBER: But I believe there's two shifts. There should be a Sergeant on each shift.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So what do you have here, a Lieutenant, Captain?
MR. McOMBER: We have a Lieutenant-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. McOMBER: --and then a Sergeant, and then ... patrol officers.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, so-MR. McOMBER: And right now...we've got a situation that's really tenuous because we have
three officers wives are hapai.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... {laughter} . ..
MR. McOMBER: .. . (laughter) . .. And you know there's gonna be some time that they're
gonna have legally... get to take time off with their spouses.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. McOMBER: And I understand there isn't very many replacements from Maui side. And
I'm not bad mouthing the police. I don't want anybody-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, no, no, no.
MR. McOMBER: --but we need the coverage over here. We have certain amount of coverage
that this town needs to be done. And with three officers ... almost all the same time.
Poor Lieutenant over here is going oh. And I think one, no, two officers and his clerk
is ... the clerk is hapai.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. .(laughter). ..
AUDIENCE: .. .{laughter} . ..
MR. McOMBER: Not by the Lieutenant, now. Don't go starting rumors-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... (inaudible) . ..
AUDIENCE: .. . (laughter) . ..
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I, I wasn't even thinking about the, ' ,(inaudible). , ,
MR. McOMBER: No, but they, the, , ,the, .. the clerk is hapai-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: .. ,(inaudible) . ..
MR. McOMBER: --and two officers' wives are hapai. So that leaves him no staff in the office
and two officers short.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR, McOMBER: Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Ron.
MR. McOMBER: All right. , ,(laughter), , ,
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ron, it seems like-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ",(inaudible). ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: What's that?
AUDIENCE: .. ,(applause), , .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .(inaudible), . ,
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay, fine.
AUDIENCE: .. ,(applause). , ,
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Could I reintroduce Member Hokama to give you some status?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, last year we were able to put money in for the. , ,the ... the old
library, the senior center hall. So we're gonna follow-up because we were, been made to
believe that before Mr. Arakawa left office, Ms, Lee who was in charge of the Housing
Department, would have contracted that work out. The money's already there .
. , , The money's already there also, .. for Fraser Avenue to get a contract notice to
proceed to repave Fraser. We also have some money in, .. although, I think from the bid
we may not be able to stretch it to Ilima yet. Okay? Fire, we get one brand new tanker
coming in from CDBG funds. We need a house, though, for the new equipment. 'Cause
if you all seen today, the current tanker is in the company's mechanical shop needing
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repairs. Police ... we're working on, on that second Sergeant. .. Ron. The Department
has not supported that position. It's something that I've-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. . (inaudible) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --been pushing. I think the, the shifts needs that support when the
Commander leaves.
NOTE:

Councilmember Victorino and Councilmemher Medeiros discussion inaudible.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And the first Sergeant is on, off...we, we... you know, that's why
we would need a second Sergeant.
... For you, for those of you that interested in transportation, MEO and what not, it has
grown from 2 million dollars four years ago. It is over 12 million dollars .. .in this
Budget.
NOTE:

Councilmember Victorino and Counellmember Medeiros discussion inaudible.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay? So that will help you with your MEO transportation as well
as if you're on Maui, the Maui Bus transit that the County is trying to grow. So that's
what's happening. Preschool for--Mr. Ron, you need to see Ms. Irons. I can tell you
have funds for the temporary youth center facility, we have funds for a brand new youth
center facility .. . (inaudible) . .. supported ...the preschool. I think we have 75,000 for
the preschool. I know the preschool's gonna come speak up. But Gail's gonna speak for
the preschool.
NOTE:

Councilmemher Victorino and Councilmemher Medeiros ended their discussion.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Diane Irons going speak about the youth center's needs and how
every year the Council has put money. And we have two projects at the community
center. One to take care the, make it a certified kitchen so that all nonprofits can prepare
food and sell it legally without being hounded by the State Department of Health. Okay,
so that's, that's ... monies we already have in the Budget and we gonna ask the Mayor to
either release the funds or give us the new numbers so that we can reappropriate and
provide the additional subsidies. Uh, what else we got there?
... Rubbish ... Mr. McOmber is right, you, the County made you sign an agreement that
says you will have twice a week pick up. The Department knows this. They've got my
letters. They're working on it as well as we understand the issues with the, the current
landfill.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. .(inaudible) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So that's ...that's on the front burner, Ron.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... and then those that don't .. .(inaudible) . .. once a
week ... (inaudible) . .. we no need two times. Waste.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Other than that ...
MR. MASUDA, FROM THE AUDIENCE: .. . (inaudible) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, anything else we'll be able to answer, we'll-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I like that idea.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --we'll be able to answer through the rest ofthe evening.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: .. .(inaudible) . .. two containers?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you ... Chairman Hokama. Just a comment in regards to what
Chairman Hokama has said.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... just one ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: As we go through the various communities, we're finding out
that. .. you know, people are getting excited because they don't see it in the 2008 Budget
and the thing is not completed.
But when we look back into previous
budget. .. Budgets--you know, we can go back as far as 2005 to 2000, presently--the
monies for those individual projects have, the monies have been encumbered. So as we
move along .. .like molasses . .. we'll get it done.
ALL: .. .(laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ha, ha molasses.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: So at this time, though-MR. McOMBER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ... (inaudible) . .. molasses move .. .(laughter). ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. .(inaudible) . ..
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time, the Chair would like to recognize ... two individuals from
the Administration that are here tonight. We do have Carol Gentz from the CDBG.
Carol is the Administrator. Carol?
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: She's the one that got your fire ... truck. And also our Public Works
Director, Milton Arakawa, back there.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay, next testifier is Joelle Aoki, followed by Chelsa [sic} Trevino.
MS. AOK1: ... Good evening, Council Members. Thank you for coming to Lanai this evening
to hear the concerns of our community. My name is Joe1le Aoki, I'm the Executive
Director and Community Resource Coordinator for the Coalition for Drug Free Lanai and
Alu Like, Incorporated. This partnership was developed in 2003 to ... support the
ongoing programs for youth and adults--the educational and prevention programs. And
the general community is also served. The Coalition is the only prevention-based agency
which serves the general community on the island of Lanai. A large number of our
programs are executed in the school during the regular school day, after school, on
campus, or in the community. The support of the School and its Administration has
allowed a strong partnership in drug and alcohol prevention here. Some of the statistics
and the accomplishments of the CDFL include the training of teachers in the early
childhood education, learning, literacy program. This program has increased the number
of children that receive the curriculum from 277 youth in 2004 to 471 youth in 2006.
This increase reflects the expansion from the elementary school to the middle school
students. Our safety classes have increased from 60 to 200--excuse me, 325 participants.
On September 2006, the Coalition for Drug Free Lanai received a notice of an award
from the Substance Abuse Mental Health Services Administration that our grant proposal
for 100,000 dollars with the community support grant for the island of Lanai was
approved. This grant will assist with Coalition building, prevention, education, literacy,
and to assist with increasing youth activities in the school and community. This funding
was greatly needed, but we are still short in funding and matching funds ...which is
required by the Federal government. This fed, fiscal year, we are emphasizing our focus
on alternative prevention tools by providing free drug test kits for parents ... support, and
resources. And this project is aimed at giving our youth a reason to say "no". In
addition, this, in addition, the CDFL have approved the partnership and umbrella of the
Interquest Detection Canines of Hawaii. And this prevention tool, which is in its
planning stages, have been advertised on the news as the, the "school drug dog" ... will
be tested in three pilot schools here in Maui County--Lahainaluna, Kamakehe [sic}, and
Lanai High and Elementary School. .. should ... all the factors come into play with the
planning, of course. And eventually, we hope to service 30 schools by 2008, and 48
schools by 2009 ... (end of tape, start 1B). .. The program goal is to create safer
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campuses and a safe environment more conducive to learning, and therefore provide
improved quality education. Also on our calendar for this fiscal year is the Lanai
Community Needs Assessment by Dr. John Gartrell and the University of Hawaii,
Department of Social Sciences Institute. We hope to gather some hard data on the Lanai
community, which will assist many organizations here, as well as the Coalition to ... have
the infonnation needed for grants planning and most importantly improved services for
the community. We'd like to ask for your continued support, Council Members, in
providing continued funding for the Coalition for Drug Free Lanai in, for the line item of
50,000 dollars for the Coalition for Drug Free Lanai to assist with its ongoing programs
and strategic plan in the coming fiscal year--as additional monies are needed in order to
meet the Federal guidelines of matching dollars for the island of Lanai. Again, thank you
for your time and we hope to gain your continued support. And we also would like to ask
for your continued support for the youth center and Destination Lanai and Maui Visitors
Bureau.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Joelle. Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: One question.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Oh, question by Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Hi .
. . . Thank you for your test-MS. AOKl: .. .{laughter} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Test, test.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Broke 'em.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ... (laughter) . ..
ALL: .. . (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sorry, you guys. Testing. Ai!
ALL: .. .(laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Excuse me. He doesn't know how to put it on, use the
mlC.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ... (laughter) . ..
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sorry.
ALL: .. .{laughter} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I think the-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. . (laughter} ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --fonn-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... (inaudible) . .. must be you .. . (inaudible) . ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. . (laughter). ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You, you said that your program is with Alu Like?
MS. AOKI: We are partners with Alu Like.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. And it's the early childhood education?
MS. AOKI: It's Kulialike Multi-Services Program.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. It's not Pulama I Na Keiki program?
MS. AOKI: No, we do, primarily financial literacy.. .individual development accounts ... which
is a matched savings account. Specifically, right now, the program we have ongoing is
for matched savings with applicants or selectees of the Department of Hawaiian Home
Lands.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. AOKI: And the program, right now, is matching ...three, uh, two to one, uh, three to one.
So for every dollar you save, we match it with three dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I, I know Federal funding to Alu Like has decreased.
And ... so how, what. .. are there other sources that you're looking to to bring your
funding levels back up?
MS. AOKI: I believe for our department specifically, we have been ... applying with many
Federal agencies and foundations specifically in the financial literacy field because we're
focusing a lot on homeownership and, you know, not only getting... clients into these
homes by helping them, you know, get a savings or being able to apply a down payment
on a home, but also being able to stay in the home with budget planning, financial
planning. We do financial literacy for youth right now in the summers, in partnership
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with Napua Noeau. And these ... eventually, our department, the Multi-Services
Program, will become the financial literacy center for the Hawaiian community as well as
the general community because we do serve non-Hawaiians as welL
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
MS. AOKI: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Joelle.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ... (inaudible) . .. talk too ... (inaudible) . ..
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The next testifier-AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --Chelsea Trevino-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It works .. . (inaudible). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Donovan Ozoa, Primo Bolo, and Tristan Lopes.
MS. TREVINO: Thank you for coming. Chelsea Trevino. I am the CDFL Vice-Chair on the
Board. Again, Joelle went over many of the accomplishments and goals of the CDFL so
I won't repeat those .. .(laughter). .. Again, I'm asking and thanking you for the line
item support ofthe 50,000 dollars. Uh ...
. . . though people are under the conception that, oh, they have money from the Feds,
they're fine, there is a matching grant, uh, matching fund situation. And you know, you
can only do so much on Lanai, especially with businesses and so forth. So we are
working with others as welL So we do appreciate your support and ...would ask for your
continued support. And I would also like to support the youth center, as well as Women
Helping Women. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any question for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Chelsea?
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MS. TREVINO, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chelsea, thank you. I don't know ifit's a better question for you
or I probably should address it to Joelle, but what is the matching requirement on the
grant you got?
MS. AOKI, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Two to one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Two to one. Wow!
MS. AOKI, FROM THE AUDIENCE: .. . {laughter} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay .. .{laughter} . .. Thank you.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .{inaudible} . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So that we don't have to call you back--once you complete your public
testimony, can you just stay there for a while?
AUDIENCE: .. . {laughter} . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Donovan, Primo ... and Tristan?
MASTER OZOA: Aloha. My name is Donovan Ozoa, and I am the Student Body President
here at Lanai High. And I am a Youth Alliance Member for Focus Maui Nui. I'll be
testifying for both. At this time, I'd like to testify for Focus Maui Nui program.
Currently, we have about 32 members, which is about a 10 to 12 student increase from
last year. The program has been going on for two years and has been going great.
Urn ... what we do is we take ...the members to local community... businesses and we
learn...what goes on and how the process works and what the current situation in
MauL .. uh, Maui County is. Last year, I attended Walk Story with the ... for the
General. ..Master Plan thing. And it was great' cause we got to put input on what in the
future, like 10 years from now, how, what high-rises or what buildings are gonna happen,
uh, be up. So, 'cause that affects us. If we got to college and we come back to work
in...Hawaii Nei .. .I should say ... we, we wanna know what's gonna be here, we gonna
have job opportunities? So we ask for your continued support for the Focus Maui Nui
program. I also like to testify for school. We are having a big budget cut. .. which is
gonna take a hard hit on the school. Next year, we will have only one .. .world
language ...
. . . with... teaching, one teacher. That's pretty hard. As a requirement, we need two
years in the same language to graduate. With one language, without the money to bring
in another teacher to teach another language, all the students won't be getting that credit
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that they need to graduate or to get, you know, if they want that BOE diploma. Several
other positions have been cut.
... We're already limited in school with the classes that are offered. We have teachers
teaching two classes concurrently during one period. Their attention can't be, you know,
they always have to shift from, you know, this subject to the next subject. But it's hard.
They wanna offer these ... things to the students, but, so they take their time out in one
period to take in another class. And you know, it's not very big, but those students may
need this missing credit that the teacher has been cut, so you know, they need that credit
to graduate. So we ask that you... you know, give us the funding that we need to give us
more teachers, you know, more positions or. .. provide more for the students so that they
can have what they want and what they need to further their education in college and
come back and have the career that they want to. Thank you.
NOTE:

Silence.

AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
MASTER BOLO: ... Hi, my name is Primo Bolo, III. And I'm a Freshman at Lanai High and
Elementary School. This is my first year attending Focus Maui Nui. And from three
sessions I attended, I feel like I leamed so much already. My idea of Focus Maui Nui is
that it's a privilege to be part ofthis organization and I feel it's important for everyone to
know that the kids are the future. We make and decide our future ... (inaudible) . ..
decide the future will be turn out for everyone. And that's the message Focus Maui Nui
is trying to spread.
. . . Thank you and we appreciate your continued support because we're a worthwhile
investment.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
NOTE:

Pause while Master Lopes approached.

MASTER LOPES: .. ' Hello, my name is Tristan Lopes. I'm currently a resident of Lanai City
and attend Lanai High and Elementary School as a Sophomore. I'm 15 years of age. I
am the Sophomore Class Secretary as well. I am involved with and I'm speaking on
behalf of a program identified as Focus Maui Nui Youth Alliance. Focus Maui Nui
Youth Alliance is a consecutive yearly program in which a select amount of students
from Maui County--meaning students from the islands of Maui, Lanai, as well as
Molokai--engage monthly in hands-on activities that are immensely focused and desire to
have the select students attain leadership abilities and characteristics to achieve our vision
of taking that newfound knowledge and addressing or affecting positive desired changes
in our various communities. Such desired changes, which are characterized as the
program's key strategies, include improving education; protecting the natural
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environment; addressing water needs; addressing infrastructure challenges, particularly
housing and transportation; adopting ... adopting targeted economic development
strategies; preserving the local culture and traditions; and addressing human needs. A
short synopsis of Focus Maui Nui ... Nui's Youth Alliance vision is as follows. Maui Nui
will be an innovated model of sustainable island living in a place where every child can
grow to reach his or her potential. Maui Nui will be a leader in the creation of
responsible self-sufficient commumhes and environmentally sound economic
develop ...development. That which makes Maui Nui unique in the world will be
preserved, celebrated, and protected for generations to come. Prior to being involved
with this program, I, of course, acknowledged problems and circumstances that were
prevalent in the community of Lanai and had desired to create changes, but did not
necessarily know how to make these changes. This program has and is continuing to
reveal itself very much useful and informative. I'm gradually gaining the knowledge and
skills necessary to go about making these changes. We have just recently conducted
interviews on subjects in Maui County containing various professions. Such subjects
included the Mayor of Maui County, Charmaine Tavares. Questions that were asked
included, quote...what quest, what challenges is the County of Maui faced with and how
would you address those challenges. Hearing of what today's leaders were, responses
were was very much encouraging and inspired myself even more to achieve the changes
desired. In conclusion, Focus Maui Nui's vision, as well as key strategies, evidently
signifies the programs desire for students ... studentses ... students .. .{laughter} . ..
through these monthly meetings to be aware of the numerous challenges facing
our. ..communities and to equip us with skills and knowledge necessary to address these
challenges in a proper, effective way. Focus Maui Nui reassures the youth of Maui
County that we do have this ability and that we can affect changes and circumstances that
seem dire and unsolvable. I highly encourage its continuance.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members-AUDIENCE: .. Japplause} . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --any question for the testifier? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh, Don?
MR. OZOA, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Yes?
NOTE:

Pause while Master Ozoa reapproached.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... Donovan?
MR. OZOA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thanks for .. .{inaudible} . .. took the power.
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MR. OZOA: .. . (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Donovan, thank you very much. Realistically, we don't
have control of any budgetary matters--teacher assignments or anything--the County has
no control, it's the State. However, would you do me this favor? I'll give-MR. OZOA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you my card. You write me a letter based upon that, and
I'll make sure it goes, I'll forward it to the Department, the Superintendent, the
District. .. Superintendent and the Board of Education ...
MR. OZOA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. , Member from Maui to make sure they're aware of it
and to see what they can do and to make sure they answer you why they cannot get a
teacher here for you guys.
MR. OZOA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay?
MR. OZOA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You do me that favor, 'eh, Donovan. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Donovan?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Donovan?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One more question. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I no like use that one ... (laughter) . ..
. . . Donovan, thank you for your testimony. And... I'm glad you have goals for a
post-high-school education. So you should pursue that. Regarding the language--what
language is gonna be offered next year?
MR. OZOA: Japanese I and II only.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And what is the reason, you mean, that's just one
year ofJapanese?
MR.OZOA: Uh...he's, he offers, we'll, he's ...he's the language teacher and teaches art.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh.
MR.OZOA: So his time is not spent mainly on Japanese, he has to teach art also.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. And is there a...Hawaiian emcrsion program on
Lanai? No? Otherwise, I going say they, they should incorporate Hawaiian language
which you can use as a foreign language when you apply for college. So I thought maybe
that was available to you folks. But, good luck. Thank you, Donovan.
MR. OZOA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Donovan.
AUDIENCE: .. .{applause} . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Stacy Purdy, followed by Roy Pinette.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Purdy approached.

COUNCILMEMBER

VICTORINO:

.. . {inaudible} . . ,

Donovan... come,

try

come

... {inaudible} . ..
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Purdy continued to approach.

MS. PURDY:
. . Good evening, Council Budget Chair Pontanilla and fellow Council
Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mic.
MS. PURDY: I'm sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Talk into the mic.
MS. PURDY: Oh, okay. Good evening Council Budget Chair Pontanilla and fellow Council
Members. Aloha and welcome to Lanai. My name is Stacy Purdy, and I am here tonight
to testify for three very worthy community-based organizations that personify the ... the
care, concern, and work to enhance the quality of life for the people of Lanai. Speaking
as a Member of the Board for the Lanai Women's Center, we are requesting funding
support to construct a temporary facility. This facility is very important to the longevity
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of our program. When we get our Federal designation as a health center, in order to
retain that designation, we need to establish an... accessible facility to service the needs
of many Lanaians. Your support of this endeavor will go a long way to support
long-term health care. As the Vice President for E Malama I Na Keiki 0 Lanai
Preschool, I would like to extend our appreciation for your past and current support of
this crucial early childhood education program. As you know, Keiki 0 Lanai is our
island's only preschool. Your appropriated funds has helped to keep this program
sustainable and thriving. I have personally seen the progress of my own children and
their playmates that have benefited from the selfless dedication of its staff and program
enrichment. Once again, we ask for your continued support to give the littlest of our
Lanai citizens a great head start in life. Finally, I add my voice to those residents and
businesses of Lanai who have expressed interest and participation with the Lanai Main
Street Committee via the Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center. Lanai City is a program
associate who is receiving guidance and assistance to achieve a level of economic
revitalization within the context of historic preservation. It is wonderful to derive
benefits from if. .. from an affiliation with a national profile program under the national
Trust for Historic Preservation, appropriately adapted to fit Hawaii's unique environment
and lifestyle. As a part of the network ofMaui County small towns, we are able to share
success stories, life experiences, resources, and gain insight and inspiration to achieve
cost-effective program goals. Here on Lanai, we have conducted a series of town
meetings resulting in a comprehensive community profile with a grow-by-design vision
of Lanai's future that incorporates an autonomous voice. We have compiled a business
directory and photo documentation of Lanai and its unique characteristics. We ask your
continued funding support of the Wailuku Main Street Association/Tri-Isle Main Street
Resource Center and their work to keep the genuine integrity of these town. Help spur
economic viability while protecting the irreplaceable Maui County small town. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Stacy. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank
you.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Roy Pinette, followed by Agrepina Dinong.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Who?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Roy.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Roy Pinette.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Roy.
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NOTE:

Very long pause while Mr. Pinette approached.

MR. PINETTE: ... Good evening, Council.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Evening.
MR. PINETTE: Welcome to Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MR. PINETTE:
Congratulation on your. .. victory in last November.
And.. .I stand
up ... tonight for the seniors on Lanai. The MEO bus that we have over here is a little
small. It only holds 12 passengers, and we have a... lift with it. Okay? What we need is
another bus that has 24 to 27 seats. So when we have a senior function in Maui, the bus
has to take three trips down, or four-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Five trips.
MR. PINETTE: --and they have to wait like ... an hour-and-a-half, three hours down there, that
first load. Coming home, it's the same way. So we need another bus on Lanai.
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. PINETTE: ... And one more thing I have is ... to me, it's a safety situation at the post
office. They... when they built the post office, they built the entrance of the parking lot,
they cut the hill too short where the MEO bus .. .long wheel base ... the front angles down
and it's, it drags underneath the bus. Okay? So, and to avoid expensive repairs, they
drop us off by the steps. But between the road and ... and... the platform for the steps,
it's pretty sleek, it's no soil, no grass, just dirt. And when it rains, it's very slippery.
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. PINETTE: ... And ...
. . . And... and ... and the ramp ... to get on the ramp to go to the post office with
wheelchairs .. .
MS. DINONG, FROM THE AUDIENCE: You can't do it.
MR. PINETTE: ... you can't do it because it's this high on there. And they have to go through
the other end ... and wbere they have to cross the exit part... ofthe parking lot. .. to get to
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the ramp. And...Federal and State law, they have that law for access for the handicaps.
And I thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Roy.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Roy, question from Mr. Hokama.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just so you folks know, we, we've talked to the Postal Service about
that ramp issue.
MR. PINETTE: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, and even Brad Oshiro has worked, tried to work very
hard with, within his postal system bureaucracy. They will not, as I understand it, put
more money to the Lanai Post Office... because that's their project. So we'll do our part
to review ...review that handicap ramp there, Roy, for everyone. But.. .for you people
who want the bus, my understanding and I, we have Carol here--in the upcoming CDBG
grant authorization, Lanai has funds ... and Carol is here, she can answer more questions,
but we, I know that the Council has supported the funds from CDBG for Lanai to get a
new MEO bus. So that is coming within, what, what do you say, Carol, about 12
months?
MS. GENTZ, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Yeah, about.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We have to order the bus, but the money is there for Lanai to get a
newMEObus.
AUDIENCE: ... (cheers and applause) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay?
AUDIENCE: ... (cheers and applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Agrepina? Agrepina?
MS. DINONG: Well, 1. . .I'm Agrepina Dinong. I'm a member of the MEO. Right now we've
got 102 members, MEO. But most of us are handicapped... getting too old. And Riki
should know, I know him when he was a small kid.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... (laughter) . ..
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .(laughter) . ..
MS. DINONG: And most of us use walkers, cane ... and they .. .lot of time that. .. we have to
use the wheelchair. And... that, lot of places like the ... one of the banks and, as he
mentioned, the post office--using the walker or a wheelchair, it's hard for people like us,
old people like us that. .. that's handicap. And another thing, we're very grateful that
we've got a bus, but it carries only 12 people. Now we've got over a 100 members.
Then, we've got, we really appreciate because we've got, they giving us at least, we get
to go to Maui once a month to shop. Now there's more than 30 of us. So the bus have to
take couple of trips ... and then they, he have to rush. And he can't go speed. Not on that
road.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... (laughter) . ..
MS. DINONG: Because we can get into an accident. But we have to catch the boat. Sometimes
when the bus is going down, the boat is already going and, you know, it's a big
disappointment for us senior citizens. Everybody would like to go to Maui because the
cost of living here on Lanai is very high so when we, whenever we have the chance to go
to Maui and shop, we are very grateful. And I thank all of you that have done a lot for
the senior citizens here on Lanai. And I, I think I know most of you because being over
80 years old-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .. . (laughter) . ..
MS. DINONG: --I know Riki very well .. .(laughter) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... (laughter) . ..
MS. DINONG: So I, I thank all of you. And hopefully we get a bigger bus that can hold more
than 12 people. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
MS. DYER: I'm Lorraine Dyer with the ... area Council, and we wish to thank you for the, for
our once-a-month trip that is starting this Saturday because we haven't had that
opportunity. We were lucky to get over there once or twice a year. So now we are
having one-a-month trip, and we really appreciate you putting the money out so that we
could do that.

- 28 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 5, 2007
Lanai High and Elementary School Cafeteria

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Bev ... Beverly Zigmond, followed by Christine Haskins.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Zigmond approached.

MS. ZIGMOND: ... Good evening, Councilmembers, and thank you for coming to Lanai
and... allowing us the opportunity to share our thoughts and feelings with you. My name
is Beverly Zigmond, and I am the Lanai Domestic Violence Program Coordinator for
Women Helping Women. And for those of you who haven't heard me before at this
hearing. I do everything on Lanai which my coworkers do on Maui. The only difference
is we don't have a shelter and I am a single person doing it.
... I want to thank you on behalf of our Executive Director, our Board of Directors, our
staff, myself, and most importantly our clients for your support in the past of a line item
and encouraging you to continue that support. This July makes five years that I have
done this job, and four of those years has been fulltime. If it was not for your support,
these services would not be available on a fulltime basis for Lanai. And let me tell you,
we need them here .
. . . And .. .I guess that was my main point in... thanking you for your support and
encouraging support in...continued support because we need these services. And just as
an aside, I'm the Vice-President of the Lanai Women's Center, and I thank you for your
support on that, too.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Baisa?

Thank you, Beverly.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good evening, Beverly-MS. ZIGMOND: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --thanks for coming. The work you do is very important. You
mentioned that you have a program, but you have no shelter. What happens to the
women you have to remove from an abusive situation? Do you remove them or you
remove the perpetrator or what do you do?
MS. ZIGMOND: Well, actually I don't do any of those removals. It depends if the perpetrator
has been arrested... or if just the woman herself needs to get away...typically, the
woman. If it's ... before the last boat or the last plane, I can get her off island. In the
past, I had an informal agreement with Castle and Cooke, if they had an empty apartment,
I could shelter somebody for a couple of nights there. But of course with the housing, the
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construction boom, that's no longer available. Against all rules, I've taken women to my
house ... to friend's house, whatever. We'll utilize Hotel Lanai if that is available.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I understand. Sometimes we do what we have to do.
MS. ZIGMOND: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah. Thank you. Thank you very much.
MS. ZIGMOND: Thank you .
. . . Anybody else?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Beverly.
MS. ZIGMOND: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
MS. ZIGMOND: And I know it looks like I was just here, but now-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. .(laughter) . ..
MS. ZIGMOND: --I am Christine Haskins.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay, you look different, but that's okay.
MS. ZIGMOND: ... (laughter) . ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: .. . (inaudible) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Christine Haskins.
MS. ZIGMOND: She is a colleague who was unable to attend tonight. And she has asked me to
read her letter to you. Dear Maui County Council, your attention to the continued
provision of safety services to Maui County residents on Lanai addresses an ongoing
need in our community. It is difficult to request support for the services provided by
Beverly Zigmond without speaking in superlatives. First, there is a the critical need to
protect our families and children. Then, there is the ... amazing, untiring dedication
Ms. Zigmond da, da, da.
AUDIENCE: .. . (laughter) . ..
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MS. ZIGMOND: Lastly, there is the heart-wrenching harm, desperation and hopelessness of
mothers and children who would not have this viable alternative if it were taken away.
Because of your position in safeguarding the needs and services of our County residents,
I'm confident you are aware of the unfortunate ongoing need for domestic violence
intervention services. Just a reminder that domestic violence is the number one cause of
harm, including death, to women. And our children exposed to domestic violence are
also compromised in their school performance and other development. In the last few
years, we have had the outstanding good fortune to have Lanai's domestic violence needs
competently addressed by Beverly Zigmond. And again, this is in large part due to ... the
Council's support. Uh... da, da, da, da, da, da, da. Lastly, and this is important, the
services--well, it's not about me, it's about the services. Uh ...the services provided by
Ms. Zigmond are the only services available on Lanai to meet those safety needs.
Without this resource, the community would suffer a tremendous blow and parents and
children victims would fall into a black hole. Many mahalos for your honoring of our
community with these support services. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Beverly.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Edwin Magaoay, followed by-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Magaoay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --oh, Magaoay, sorry... by Diane Irons.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .(inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. MAGAOAY: ... Howzit. .. County Council Members. My name is Edwin Magaoay. I'm
one of the volunteer coaches for the Lanai Menehune Basketball League. And I'm here
in support of the Coalition for Drug Free Lanai. We've ... received support from CDFL
for several years. And the impact of our program on the lives of the youtb have been due
to their support, which has provided a safe and drug-free activity for the youth ages 7 to
14. Which is .. .it's 3'd grade up to 8th grade. Last year, we had a total about 120
participants. And this year, about 90 ... 90 kids participated in this program. We would
like to ask for your support, County Council Members, in providing continued funding of
50,000 dollars for CDFL to assist with its ongoing prevention programs in the coming
fiscal year. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Edwin. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: If not, thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER __ : Thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next set oftestifiers are Diane Irons ...
. . . Lorna Sanches ... Natasha Mosley ... (end of tape, start 2A). ..
MS. SANCHES: Aloha. My name is Lorna Sanches, and I am the Program Coordinator for the
Lanai Youth Center. Our Center is open 5 days a week, 12 hours a day. We service
youths ages 7 to 18 years old. The Lanai Youth Center provides a safe, educational
nurturing environment for youths to come and do their homework or simply just hang
out. We have programs consisting of age-appropriate prevention education... programs
focusing on communication, making right choices, and drugs and alcohol. .. along with
culture, fitness, arts and crafts, health skills, community service, and excursions .
. . .We are asking for 30,000 dollars for a new van for the Lanai Youth Center. We have
a 1993 ...van that was given to us by you folks, the County, secondhand. And it's rickety
and we are in dire need of a, a new safe transportation for the childten. We are the only
youth organization available 12 hours a day, 5 days a week for the youths of Lanai to
freely attend. I ask that you please support the Lanai Youth Center. Thank you.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Mosley approached.

MS. MOSLEY: ... Hello, Council Members. My name is Natasha Mosley, and I'm the newest
employee at the Lanai Youth Center.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. .(inaudible} ...
MS. MOSLEY: Hello?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There you go.
MS. MOSLEY: All right. Thank you. My name is Natasha Mosley, and I'm the newest
employee at the Lanai Youth Center. I'm a part-time Program Specialist and
Administrative Assistant. I'm in charge of the art and health programs. I would like to
ask you to please continue support of our Youth Center as it is the only youth
organization regularly open. Also, I would like to add that the Youth Center van, a 1993
Ford which was given to the Youth Center from the County, is broken. If we could get
funding for a new vehicle, it would be put to great use. We use the van for field trips and
excursions such as to the cultural center, to the fann, bringing the kids to the beach. The
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field trips and excursions are a great incentive for the youth to continually attend the
Youth Center. SO ... thank you again for your time and attention .. . (laughter). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Diane?
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Irons approached.

MS. IRONS: ... Good evening. My name is Diane Irons, and I'm the Executive Director at the
Youth Center. And as my staff has told you, we're the only organization that's open
regularly to the youth 5 days a week, 12 hours a day. The Maui County Community
Partnership Grant allows us to open these hours, allows us to offer many things to the
youth. We also have a grant funded by the U.S. Department of Justice. And with this
grant, we developed a partnership with the Lanai High School. With the partnership, we
offer after school tutoring on the high school and elementary level. We're also ...
. . . able to offer a robotics class to the high school. And we are also offering a Korean
language class to the elementary kids. We have also developed a partnership with the
non-school sponsored team, such as the cheerleaders, the girl's middle school volleyball,
and the Kaulalaau wresting team. With the funds, we are able to provide uniforms and
equipment for the youth. Also with the, with the U.S. Department of Justice funds, we
are able to provide prevention education to the school as an after school program. We are
currently located in a 20 by 40 portable classroom. Our plans were to add another 20 by
40 portable classroom to the existing facility. Through donations and fundraising, the
kids have raised an .. .in excess of 80,000 dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Wow.
MS. IRONS: We have also received an award of 150,000 from the CDBG. And currently,
we're in the design ... the plan and design process. We also have been awarded 198,000
dollars Federal funding through Dan ... Senator Inouye's office to be used to plan and
design our future permanent site. The children and the staff feel that medical emergency
services is really important on Lanai because we do not have a hospital like all the other
islands. So as part of our keiki kupuna program, we, with the partnership with the Police
Department, the Fire Department, and tbe emergency medical team, the kids have
fundraised and on April 28 th at the community health fair, we will be giving out two "file
oflife" magnets to each household. I don't know if you're familiar with that. The file of
life magnets are red magnetic sleeves. They're clear in the front and they're to be put on
the refrigerator, and they hold a medical information card. So when, should you call the
emergency medical team, if you are unconscious, non-English speaking, or perhaps just
really upset because your spouse is ill, the team can quickly see the magnets, pull out the
card and know exactly what your medical status is, your allergies, your medications. So
the kids have fundraised, and we're able to provide two of the magnets to each household
and as many cards as they need. Another one of our fundraising efforts is our telephone
commune, our community business directory. I don't know if you used the phone book
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to call Lanai, but there's three little tiny pages in this huge book. And sometimes Lanai
gets lost. So the kids have .. .(laughter) . .. made a small .. .it's a 5 by 8 page, 47-page
community business directory. That's been one of our fundraisers for the past three
years, and it's been very successful. So as you can see, the kids not only enjoy the fun
aspects, but they really take pride in keeping this program going. So I ask you for two
things. Number one, to continue to support the Youth Center programs. And number
two, as my two staff members have said, our van is ready to die-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... {laughter} . ..
MS. IRONS: .. . (laughter). .. and we enjoy taking the kids on field trips. So if you could
perhaps put 30,000 in the Budget and if the van is more than that, then we'll continue to
fundraise ... and...work it out. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Diane. Members, any questions for the testifier?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .(inaudible) . ..
CHAIRPONTANILLA: No-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .(inaudible) . .. wait for Diane. Part of the CDBG funding for the
MEO's new bus--and Ms. Gentz is here, so you can talk to Carol ...
. . . We brought up from the Council's side, the concern that. .. you know, small
communities need to share.
MS. IRONS: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So we asked that the MEO bus be also, be able to handle when,
when, when scheduling can be coordinated, for you to ... for the Youth Center to also
have-MS. IRONS: Oh,okay-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --access to work it out so that there's additional transportation
options for your folks.
MS. IRONS: Oh, okay. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next testifier is Gail Riener-French.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Riener-French approached.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Followed by Waynette Ho-Kwon.
MS. RlENER-FRENCH: Good evening, and thank you for coming to Lanai. My name is
Gail Riener-French, and I'm here to support the Women Helping Women program in
Lanai. It's a, it's also offered to Maui County, but I can't speak to the Maui
County... services. As a victim of domestic violence, I had no where to go when I was in
abusive situation. Beverly was there for me every step of the way, and she still is there. I
needed a place to stay, and Beverly contacted Hotel Lanai, and they said we're closing in
five minutes, if you don't get here, you can't have the room. Beverly said it's an
emergency, and the clerk said it won't be in five minutes. Beverly went down in her
pajamas, literally, to get me a room so I had a place to stay for the night. She took me
there and she also has assisted me on a regular basis since. Domestic violence is real, it
happens. Nobody wants to talk about it. Nobody wants to acknowledge it. But it's a
very important service we have here on Lanai. The thing is is that Beverly's only one
person. When she has a day off, they answer the phone on Maui and there's nobody here
to take her place. So if you could at least keep the same amount of budget or maybe as
they ... as their needs grow ... give them some funding to be able to be here 24 hour, 7
day a week. Beverly also is active in all the court cases going on. She sits with each
person through every case that they're involved in. She's a huge support. We can't do
without Women Helping Women here on Lanai. And like I said, domestic violence is not
talked about, nobody wants to admit it. I'm here to say it's real. They're doing a great
job here and I appreciate if you would continue their funding. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Gail. Members any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, again. Waynette Ho-Kwon, followed by Gail Shin.
MS. HO-KWON: ... Aloha, good evening. I'm here tonight. .. representing the island of Lanai,
Lanai Visitors Bureau. My name is Waynette Ho-Kwon. We get our funding from the
Maui Visitors Bureau. I am the only staff member here on Lanai. And so I'm here to,
you know, on behalf of our Board... and on behalf of our members to say thank you for
the funding that we have been receiving, and also in support of this year's funding for
Maui Visitors Bureau. It's a, you know, we're such a small community that we know
firsthand what the visitors impact is for Lanai. If, if the visitor counts go down, our
people don't have jobs. Nobody eats. Nobody sleeps. Everybody worries. So you
know, it's a really big issue for us here on Lanai. So that's kind of it for me tonight.
Again, thank you for your support. And, again, here for. . .lateral funding for Maui
Visitors Bureau. Also, supporting all the organizations that support our keiki to our
kupuna and everything all in between. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Waynette. I think we have a question by Member Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... Good evening, Waynette-MS. HO-KWON: Good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --thanks for coming.
MS. HO-KWON: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: The money that you get, do you get allocation and you disburse
your own money or are your funds controlled by Maui?
MS. HO-KWON: Our funds are controlled by Maui Visitors Bureau. So they write, they get the
grant and then they process all the grant, and then we get the funding through them.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I see. So do you have a set allocation of the Maui-MS. HO-KWON: We have a set allocation.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Do, do you know what that is?
MS. HO-KWON: I know exactly what that is ... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Tell me.
MS. HO-KWON: It's 200,000 dollars. This year, since the increase in Fiscal Year '07, we were
given an increase of 220,000. So that's, of course, in addition to our 150,000 from the
State .. .(laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That's wonderful.
MS. HO-KWON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Can you give us an idea of some of the things you do with your
allocation here on Lanai?
MS. HO-KWON: Wow ...we do everything from the marketing aspect--sales, public relations,
advertising. As far as the community relations aspect, that's a really big part of, for us.
Any of the organizations come to us--oh, we have a give away or we, you know, we have
something that's going on, can you lend your time, lend support... financially or, you
know, with some kind of gift-type item for a prize or. .. that as well as, you know, it, it's
time. It's time--when they need help, you know, painting something or you know they
call and ask. And we try and get out there. And--
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Do you provide any direct service to the visitors?
MS. HO-KWON: Direct service? Yes. We have some funding from the Harbor Greeters
Program from Hawaii Tourism Authority. So we have one part-time person who meets
the first and the second ferry every moming--well, Mondays through Friday 'cause that's
all we have funding for. Monday through Friday, she's there to answer questions ... give
out our Lanai map, and just, you know, kind of be there as our liaison while ... one, that
our harbor is under construction; but, two, because a lot of times the, the visitors first
time, they're not sure what is available. They think that we have, you know, bus service
or that we have a taxi service that's available for them 2417. So we kind of gotta, you
know, educate them on that part.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: So you kind of serve as a concierge on, on-site.
MS. HO-KWON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good. Well, thank you very much.
MS. HO-KWON: Thank you.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: I think that helps us a lot in understanding.
MS. HO-KWON: Thank you. And thanks again for coming this evening. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I have a question.
MS. HO-KWON: Oh ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: How many of you...work for Lanai Visitors Bureau?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One.
CHAIR PONTANlLLA: Just you?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just her.
MS. HO-KWON: Just me .. . (laughter). ..
CHAIR PONTANlLLA: And that one part-time worker?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .(inaudible) . ..
MS. HO-KWON: I have a temp worker, yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. HO-KWON: So that's it. .. unless you can help out with that, I'd be more than happy
.. .(laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MS. HO-KWON: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Gail Shin, followed by Mary...Mary Louise ... Kaukeano.
MS. SHIN: Good evening, Maui County Council Members. Thank you for your time this
evening in allowing us to voice our needs for the community of Lanai. My name is
Gail Shin, and I am the Program Administrator for E Malama I Na Keiki 0 Lanai
Preschool. In 1981, parents of young children recognized the need in our community,
thereby establishing our preschool. We are a licensed, nationally accredited preschool
and registered as a nonprofit organization. The preschool is governed by a volunteer
Board of Directors comprised of interested parents and community members. Our
preschool goals are to provide a secure and loving enviromnent, encouraging
developmentally age-appropriate activities in play, and to be affordable for all of Lanai's
children ages 2 through 6. Early childhood programs allow children to explore and
develop as a whole being--cognitively, physically, socially, emotionally, and creatively.
Children are our future. With encouragement from teachers, they develop skills such as
social and critical thiuking skills which enable them to become successful students and
adult members of society. Because our preschool is nationally accredited, we need to
maintain a high level of quality of standards. Our team of six employees who work
directly with children are dedicated to taking early childhood classes and attending
workshops and conferences. During this past fall semester, three members successfully
completed an early childhood class at Maui Community College. One member is
currently enrolled in a Maui Community College spring class, and we will also be taking
a class this fall. The knowledge we gain in classes and networking with other early
childhood professionals enables us at our preschool to provide quality service to the
preschool children, their families, and the entire community of Lanai. To successfully
operate the preschool, we must provide our employees with competitive wages. Some
monies are raised through fundraising endeavors. These funds are utilized for the entire
operation of our preschool, including wages. We have attained 57 percent of our
fundraising goal for this year, and are presently engaged in another fundraising event.
Without your funding assistance, we would not be able to provide the quality care and
education to Lanai's keiki. Thank you very much for your past assistance in meeting the
needs of E Malama INa Keiki 0 Lanai Preschool. And as a new Program Administrator,
I am looking forward to working with you as we ask for your continued support for the
future. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
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... Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: ... Good evening, Gail.
MS. SHIN: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: And I'm very familiar with the preschool. I think I was here
when it was started .. . (laughter) . .. ME, I used to be with MEO-MS. SHIN: Ahh ...
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: --and we helped, we had a Head Start that turned into a
collaboration between Head Start and-MS. SHIN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: --the Preschool. How many children are there now?
MS. SHIN: We are actually, because of the size of the facility, licensed for 36 children per day.
We currently have 41 children enrolled because some of them are on a part-time status.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: That is a-MS. SHIN: And we do have a partnership with Head Start. We have seven slots that are Head
Start slots. So we are co-partners there.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: And you're accredited by ACYF or-MS. SHIN: The-COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: N-MS. SHIN: --NAEYC.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: NAEYC. That. .. congratulations-MS. SHIN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --that's no easy thing to do.
MS. SHIN: No. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: And what are your hours?
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MS. SHIN: Our hours of operation are Monday through Friday, 7 a.m. to 5 p.m.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: And how large is your staff?
MS. SHIN: We have six teaching staff, and one housekeeper.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: ... You're a busy woman. Congrat-MS. SHIN: We all are.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: Congratulations. You know, there is nothing more important
than a good start in life.
MS. SHIN: That's true.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah-MS. SHIN: We all agree.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
MS. SHIN: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. The next testifier is David Roberts, followed by
John Ornellas.
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Roberts approached.

MR. ROBERTS: ... Hello, Council Members. Welcome. My name is David Roberts. I
currently teach here at the school--Business and Technology... computers, digital media,
and so forth. I'm here on behalf of. .. for the first part, on behalf of the Maui Economic
Development Board ... Women in Technology. A year or so ago, we... did kind of a, a,
kind of a pilot program where we, we tested a little something here that, that became very
successful. It was a Women in Technology here on Lanai. And .. .I was fortunate
enough to have 18 ...really good participants in the computer literacy program through
MCC satellite office here. It was very, very successful. And I appreciate your support on
that. And I know you guys are, are definitely a, a huge part of that. Basically I'm
coming to just say thank you and, and please continue supporting this. We have another
one that's gonna be starting up probably this month. We ... we're gonna start it in
October, however there was some scheduling conflicts with the, you know, the college
over here. And so it was a little difficult to get it started. But Jenny Gaskin over there,
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she's a extremely good lady that's working extremely hard at getting this kind of stuff
brought to Lanai, It's very interesting and just on a, on a personal level for me to see the
women get this kind of technology training--because I get some that come in that don't
even know what the mouse is, , ,some that don't even know how to tum it on, And it's
extremely gratifying when they say, oh, I was able to help my grandson or my
granddaughter or my daughteL , ,figure something out on the computeL It's, it's
fascinating to see the kind of zeal and enthusiasm that these, these women really do have,
Many that are taking this into the workplace with them, , ,that are younger and using that
to their advantage, Again, thank you for your support, And I, I hope that you continue to
support, On, on the second level, I just wanted to kind of let you know, even
though, , ,it's not as much in your power to fund or anything to that effect Where you
can help, it would be great However, on a school level, we just, through the, , ,Maui
Community College and the Rural Development Program received a grant that's gonna
help us start a digital design lab here on the island, Just to give you an idea of what that
is, it's a Kinko's here on the island, basically, It, it's really a Kinko's on steroids--if you
wanna call it that
AUDIENCE: ",(laughter)",
MR ROBERTS: ",(laughter}", To be honest with you, Urn" ,because it's not just copying
and, and things like that It, we cover everything from the design, , ,all the way through
to delivering the producL It's completely student-based,
, , , The good thing here is that we are doing it in coop, in, in, kind of in concert with the
VSA Arts program, with the local technology classes at schooL We're even integrating
it, hopefully we can integrate it into teacher help--being able to make copies, design
presentations, PowerPoint presentations for teachers,
, , , Another level of it that we're looking forward to is working with the Lanai Women's
CenteL We've been in contact with them, They're looking forward to being able to
channel their monies for marketing collateral, informational brochures, so forth, so on,
back into the community, Instead of going off-island with this, why not just bring it back
in? Keep the money here and just kind of chum iL , ,buy new equipment, so forth, so on,
Just wanted to let you guys know that because, , ,it's an extremely good opportunity for
our youth to get real live experience in publishing, design, graphics arts, , ,graphic arts,
all of those things, Just thought I would let you know, Thank you, again, for your
support-COUNCILMEMBER __ : Thank you,
MR, ROBERTS: --very much,
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ", Members, any questions for the testifier?
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... Thank you.
MR. ROBERTS: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think I skipped Mary Louise Kaukeano.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Not here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: She's not here? Okay, John, you're up. John Ornellas ...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: .. .(laughter) . . . (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... followed by Nani Watanabe.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: .. . (inaudible). ..
MR. ORNELLAS, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Shut up, I no like talk behind .. . (inaudible) . ..
back.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It wouldn't be the first time. Oh ...
MR. ORNELLAS: .. . {laughter} . .. Hey...welcome ... Council Members. And welcome all the
new Members.
· .. You guys are still smiling, so it must be, must not be that bad.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. . (laughter} ...
MR. ORNELLAS: Right, Riki? .. .(laughter). .. Okay. Well ...urn ...
· .. I'm a Board Member of the CDFL.
· .. You heard from a few of our, our. .. our Executive Director and our assistants. I just
wauna, again, go ...tell you that the CDFL is very, very strong here on Lanai. Very
instrumental and... and because of our Executive Director, we are very, very active in
this community. So the 50,000 dollars that we're asking for. .. will definitely help
our. .. our... situation here on Lanai. As you know, we're no different than any other
community in.. .in Maui County and the State as far as when it comes to drugs.
So ...with our Executive Director, Joe1le, she is very, she's our pit bull. And she goes
and finds things. And you, and you all know that there's tons of money out there for
grants and that kind of stuff, but it's all the little things that get attached to that. So, yeah,
there's maybe 50, 60 thousand dollars out there, but it might require another person,
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another, you know, so .. .it. .. sometimes you, that's what Joelle does. She goes and she
looks at every single one and finds out all the strings attached to the grants. So ... and she
finds, and she finds some. And it. .. most of 'em payoff for us. Urn ... services here on
Lanai?
· .. I'm glad Mr. Medeiros is here and... being from ... being from ... Hana... and I'm, I
was hoping Danny would be here, too, because they, you gnys nnderstand what
services ...what services are available. Lanai does not get its fair share. Period. Our
DMV is hit and miss. Maybe they're here two days out of the week. lfthe boat ride is,
is .. .if, if the, if there's high surf, they don't come ... and we're stuck. We have people
here, business people here that have trucking and...that need CD ...um... you know the,
the commercial plates, safety checks and that kind of stuff. They...they go, I mean,
yeah, our cops look the other way... but. .. they're illegaL They cannot run on the road,
technically. But the police officers nnderstand that the DMV people couldn't show up
or. .. or whatever. But. .. you know, early voting--you gnys get to go down and, down,
downstairs or upstairs to the City Clerk's Office and, and vote early. We, we don't have
that. Even Molokai has early voting. We don't have that. Our landfilL .. Maui, Maui's
landfill is open... six days a week, mayhe? Our landfill, lucky.. .like this week, it was, it
was, it's gonna be closed tomorrow. So if you wanna go dump your stuff ...
· .. Friday, Saturday, Sunday, it will be closed. So that's why we have a lot of the
rubbish that's aronnd our, surronnding our city--it's because there's, we don't have the
services. Our dump is not open .. .long enough for us, for people to go down there. The
County does pay for. .. for Manny... for Lanai Disposal to put, you know ... construction
trailers outside, outside the gate, but these things are, you know, 10-foot tall. And if you
have a senior or somebody trying to get rid of their, their rubbish and if it doesn't make it
to the top .. .(laughter). .. it, it lands on the gronnd. So that place is really a mess down
there. But we want. .. all we ask is that we receive the, we don't ask for anything more
than what the rest of the Connty gets, we just ask for the, the same amount. Urn ...
· .. sewer fees. When I was sitting back there and Phyllis McOmber was asking me, she
says, how does they, how do they ask, how do they ...
· .. tell me how much money I have to pay for my sewer fees, isn't off the amount of
water I use? So what about the houses that are paying, that have ... 7 people in, in the
house and, and there's a senior that. .. only, is the only person in the house--why are their
bills basically the same? You know, I, I we don't. .. I. ..this is just from Phyllis because I
gness she's seen it in her, in her daily working 'cause she, they also do vacation rentals,
too, yeah. Oh, wrong subject. But-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(laughter) ...
MR. ORNELLAS: You know, it's just. . j don't know how it works because I have been told
over the years that it's based on the, the water that you use. But. . .if somebody has a
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house full of kids and that kid of stuff, do they pay more than ... do they pay more what a
single person, a senior that's in .. .in their own house, do they, do they pay more? I don't
think so. I don't know what, I know it's based on what, a 1,000... gallons, the price is
based on 1,000 gallons? But anyways if you guys can look into that, I'd be interested to
know that. Urn ... our tennis courts ...
. . . I'm giving you warning. Our tennis courts are on the verge of requiring major, major
work. I noticed tennis courts have become an issue with Kula and stuff. These courts
were built the same time as Kula's courts. The same lights that are here ...when, when
they built Kula courts, they ordered the same lights and some went there, some went here.
So it's basically the same. Nothing has been, no ... there's some maintenance done on it,
not enough. They haven't been, the courts haven't been power washed in a long, long
time. Half of our wind screens are, are, are being... were damaged and they're broken.
Urn... these courts here, the County courts, they need to be, not "resurfaced", but
resealed. Okay, 'cause there, there's cracks starting to develop. And the warning is that
once water starts seeping in there over a period of time, you'll lose it. Then it become a
million dollar effort ... because you're gonna have to redo the whole thing--go down to
the core and work your way back up. Right now, it's gotta do, just seal it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: John, could you conclude, please?
MR. ORNELLAS: Sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. ORNELLAS: And then ... the 5th Street courts--there's four courts, County courts in the
City. The 5th Street courts are totally ...
. . . one, one court doesn't even have a net. And they're just bUS-Up. There's no, I don't
know how, if it's hard of us to maintain 'em, or something, but it just...when, when
schools ...Baldwin High or somebody comes to play here on Lanai, they, the girls usually
play up here and the boys go to Manele Bay Hotel .. .{laughter} . .. So that's a pretty,
wide, you know, wide spread. So these courts gotta be operational until our school, new
school, our expansion gets built. Which, in our master plan, has four courts on, on the
campus. So that way, these courts become more available for the, and our school has a, a
team of27 kids. Uh ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: John-MR. ORNELLAS: One more then pau ... {end a/tape, start 2B} . .. One more. Trees. Nobody
said anything about trees here tonight.
NOTE:

Silence.
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MR. ORNELLAS: .. , Lanai City, when yon fly over Lanai City.. .that's what you see. This is
like Haliimaile used to be like. Okay? The trees of Lanai is ... Lanai's personality. I'm
not a tree hugger, but I've seen more trees cut down in the last few years ... and I
understand that these trees are coming to the end of their lifespan, but there a lot of
healthy trees that are being cut down unnecessarily. If they're diseased... and there's a
safety issue involved, I've got no problems with them cutting down. But they've cut
trees down just for the hell of it because they cause too much rubbish, they call you
know, or, or something, branches or whatever. But. .. this is the personality of Lanai
City, if we get rid of our trees, you can look at pictures back in the '30s and the
'40s ... urn, the '20s when there wasn't a tree. And that's not the way Lanai is going, not,
that's not the way the people of Lanai wants Lanai to look like. If you see there's, there's
a lot of blank spaces in, in, in the, in the, in the city without trees. It's because we're
cutting 'em down without rep/acing any. So, I'm done. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, John .
. . . Nani Watanabe, he took your-MR. ORNELLAS: .. . (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --he took your six minutes.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause). ..
MS. WATANABE: Am I here for. .. which?
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Both of 'em.
MS. WATANABE: Okay .. .(laughter). .. Hi, good evening, Chair Pontanilla and Members of
the Council .. .(laughter) . ..
. . . Okay, I'm gonna do the first one. The first one is on Aloha Festivals. And I'd really
like to say mabalo to the Council Members for supporting our yearly Aloha Festivals.
It's actually been my third year since I been... this is my third year that I'm gonna
actually chair the event. And... thank you for your money. I mean, it really helps us. As
you know, Lanai is a very challenging island because of the fact that we have to always
fly our entertainers in and, you know, sometimes I have to even get vendors from Maui.
But. .. your, the money has helped our, our event. We have been able to pay members in
the community for a little stipend for helping us with the setup. You know, it's ...we
don't have tent rentals here--I mean we have a... you know, a few vendors, but other than
that, you know, we do make our money from our vendors as they rent the space. But I'd
also like to thank Pearl Ah Ho for actually helping me with all the budget. She has been
wonderful and I'm hoping to find a new budget person 'cause she now has many
responsibilities .. .(laughter). .. So I'd like to say mahalo. Okay, now I come to you as a

- 45 -

BUDGET A<"lD FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 5, 2007
Lanai High and Elementary School Cafeteria

community member.
And this is and... and I'd like to thank our
Councilman Riki Hokama for responding ...to my letter. And I'm pretty sure that all of
you received a letter. . .in your office and ... so now this is a face that goes with the letter.
Okay. I'm writing to you in re, regarding the use of the old gym located on Fraser
Avenue. Presently, as you know, it houses the Parks and DMV Department. As an
active member in this community, I have been faced with barriers when it comes to a
facility that will house and support some of our activities and performances that take
place in Dole Park. The past three years, I have taken on the responsibility of chairing
two of our major events, such as Pineapple Festivals and Aloha Festivals. I have since
included hosting other cultural performances provided by the Maui Arts and Cultural
Center, Shaolin Chinese Arts Society, and all ...other cultural groups that have interest in
coming to Lanai. We no longer can depend on the school's facilities because it is used by
the students. I'm concerned because of all the hard work, planning, and coordinating
such activities and events take much of our time and, most importantly, money to make it
all possible. We do not have a facility that we can always depend on and be available for
great performances that is shared in this community. Do you realize that when it rains we
have no where to go? Can you imagine the day of an event we have no place to relocate
our entertainment because a basketball game is going on in our school, and we have just
spent 3 to 5 thousand dollars for entertainment and sound? I'm asking on behalf of
myself and the members of the Lanai community to up, help us upgrade the old gym the,
and what I'm asking for is, all we need is stage lighting, curtains, dressing rooms, floor
covering, and folding chairs. Please consider our request. The facility already exists.
We need your help now. This is our priority for us here on Lanai. We are not asking for
a new facility--but . ..we could have that on our wish list--and, but we are willing to
utilize the facility we already have. Mahalo for your time and please consider our
request. Your reply to this request is greatly appreciated. Just a note of thought. .. and,
and Riki knows this--you know, my grandparents celebrated 69 years married here. It
was a big thing. We were already, we also on television...KGMB TV. And you know
that, the gym made it all possible. You know, and we utilized the floor as well as the
bleachers. So ... I'm asking for your support in this. Please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Nani. Members-MS. WATANABE: Anyquestions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --any questions?
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... How much?
MS. WATANABE: Howmuch-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: How much you asking for ... (inaudible) . ..
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MS. WATANABE: Okay, how much am I asking for? Gosh, I was trying to figure out a cost
for this, and a rough estimate I would think of is between 40 to 50 thousand dollars. It's
just a rough estimate. I'm not, I'm not. .. really sure on that because .. .I wasn't able to
get Richard 'cause he's out sick. So ... okay?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. WATANABE: Mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER __ : Thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Pierce Myers?
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Myers approached.

MR. MYERS: ... Council Members, good evening and welcome to Lanai. Piece Myers. I'm
the Principal at Lanai High and Elementary School. I have ... a thank you... an update,
and a request. The thank you is ... thank you for the 50 acres that you've made available
to us for our campus expansion. The update is that two weeks ago I met with the
Department of Education Facilities Plauners, and we're in the ...the first stages, now, of
developing conceptual drawings for Phase I of our build out. This Phase I is a
six -classroom building that will house new science classrooms for our students and, and
some other classrooms as well. The fellow that was speaking about a graphics lab earlier,
a new graphics lab will be in this building. So the 50 acres that you've made available
for us, we're in Phase I of building towards that. The request of you is the 50 acre parcel
that we have is part of larger 115 acre parcel. And the, the remaining 65 acres after the
school's 50 acres is for affordable housing. As the Department of Education is ... having
environmental assessments and other land acquisition and land use kinds of projects done
on the parcel, I'm asking if there isn't a way that we can partner with the County and
perhaps with Hawaiian Home Lands to share the costs of some of those assessments and
other things that need to be done on the land instead of our doing it for the 50 acres, you
folks doing it for the 65 acres of affordable housing--there may be a savings if we can get
together and do the entire 115 acres at one time. I made this proposal and
recommendation to the GP AC here when I met with them a couple of years, or a couple
of weeks ago, presenting our school expansion plan. And I think that that will come as a
recommendation in the GP AC. But I wanted to give you a heads up that that might be on
the way. I see it as a, a cost savings, potentially. But I realize that it'll be new ground for
the County and the State working together and Department of Education trying to share
our costs here. And I realize that there may be some barriers there. Potential cost
savings instead of asking for more money.
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... Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Thank you. Members, any questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Okay. Fine.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Pierce ... you too logical. And unfortunately, the State bureaucracy
does not think that same way. Because we've approached them to do exactly what you
just requested this evening, and under the State Procurement Office, Mr. Fujioka... since
you folks have already started, he will not allow the County to piggyback and try and do
this simultaneously to get cost savings.
So ...we're got, we're... gonna do it
.. . (laughter) . .. the County's gonna do its 65 acres and DOE is gonna do its 50 acres
independently since that's the ruling from the State Procurement Officer regarding ... the
school's 50 acres. We, we, we... we've asked. We thought it made sense, like you...we
wanted to do a joint submittal to the Land Use Commission. And we were told that we
would not be able to do so. So ... good try.
MR. MYERS: Yeah, thanks for the update. And unfortunately.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We thought like ...we thought like the GPAC, we thought like the
school. And I can tell you that. .. you know, I have John Min in my office working. He's
assigned to this project. And... and we've talked to your State ...Department as well as
the Procurement people, and they won't agree. So ...that's the status on that one, Pierce.
MR. MYERS: Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Members any more questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. MYERS: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: She like testify, that girl.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Ralph Masuda?
COUNCILMEMBER _ _ : .. .(laughter) . ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER, FROM THE AUDIENCE: .. .(inaudible). ..
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MR. MASUDA: ... Ralph Masuda, I'm with Castle and Cooke Resorts. I'd like to piggyback
on what Nani had just testified on.
· .. I don't know if it's possible, but. . .1, I'm quite sure that there's enough Park
Assessment money that the Company has contributed to the County to handle a project of
this magnitude that Nani was talking about. As of today, we've paid a total of 671,000
dollars for, in Park Assessment monies and we haven't seen a penny spent yet on this
island by the County Parks Department. In the .. .in the future, I would say by the end
of... 2007, you'll have another half-a-million dollars in Park Assessment monies. So
you, you're gonna end up with about 1.2, 1.3 million dollars. And we'd like to see some
of that money spent. And, but like I said, I don't know whether it's possible to be, these
monies can be spent on existing facilities or it has to be for a new park. Uh .. .1 get kind
of dizzy when I look at the revolving funds ... (laughter) . .. I mean, you guys got a lot of
money revolving around. You know? And, and one, one of the, one of the funds is
Affordable Housing Fund that has about 4 million dollars. And I would like to see part of
that money spent for the 65-acre entitlement and the design and the subdivision... design
for the...the land that was donated to the County by the Company for affordable
housing.
· .. There's also 5.8 million for Open Space, Natural Resource, Cultural Resources. And
you know, that money should be spent by the ... by the Planning Department or. .. Parks
or, you know, to do a cultural type of facility or, and, and also to work on the
preservation of historic sites. And... because a lot of these lands are ...may be privately
owned, but a lot of the lands are also State lands that I don't know if the County can join
with the State to do preservation work. But they're important cultural aspects of the
islands. There's also a, an item under the six ...six-year Capital Improvement Program
for Lanai under. ..Road Improvements. And it says Kaupili Road Improvement. I just
can't believe...Kaupili Road Improvement.
Kaupili Road is a dirt road
which... basically is bisected by the Lanai Airport... State lands. So I would like to
see ...monies instead of being spent on Kaupili Road ...be put into road improvements in
the City and also for drainage improvements in the City. We have given to the County a
drainage master plan for Lanai City. And the ... again, the Lanai ... Parks and Recreation,
the Lanai Community Center, Lanai Community Center certified kitchen, all of those are
County funds. You, you got. .. you know, I hate to see the Parks Assessment money just
sit there and get fat. Okay? That money should be spent on facilities within the
community plan region and monies that we have paid for park assessments to be spent on
this island.
· . . Government facilities ... Lanai Fire Station addition. The Fire Department has
approached the Company for more land in back of the existing fire station. And... we've
been waiting for a map. And it's been years that we've been waiting for a map to show
us exactly the area that they need. And ... basically the fire station is on leased land.
Leased to the .. .leased from the Company to the fire station. I mean, right next to the fire
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station you have a 2.8 acre park that's been donated to the County. So the fire station can
expand into the park area. And I'm sure we can work out something and give the land
that the fire station is sitting on right now to the County.
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. MASUDA: ... Oh, under Sanitation. Lanai landfill. I've been reading in the papers about
the fines that the, the County has been paying to the Department of Health for Lanai
landfill problems. Well, one of the problem is ... the County does not have a lease on the
total. . .landfill acreage.
You know, they have a lease on the 10 acres, but
there's... another 25 acres that the County has ... a special use permit on, but no lease
from the, from the Company. So I, I think, you know, all of those things have to be
worked out, but. .. there are other items that we would have to discuss with the County on
the lease of that. .. extra 25 acres. That's it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Masuda...don't go away, 'cause I get questions.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .(inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay, before I ask my questions, Mr. Hokama is gonna give you
some updates.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Let's see, where shall we start?
MR. MASUDA: ... (laughter) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .. .(laughter) . .. Park Assessment Fees. Uh ...
. . . my office is, is re-verifying because we ...the Parks Department cannot verify all the
money that the Company has paid for Park Assessment requirements.
MR. MASUDA: Well, one of the reason is that the...the ... the very beginning of the
development, the park assessment monies was put into General Fund rather than a Fund
specifically for the community plan region. And the last time we had checked, it was
something like 6,000 left in that fund.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we know the Fund's not in balance ...
MR. MASUDA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Mr. Masuda. So second .. .I think the ordinance, currently, is
that we can only use Park Assessment for. .. new projects, new facilities. It's ... we have
not been ... appropriating any Park Assessment Funds for repair and maintenance. And
so we, we can go double check on that. So we appreciate your comments. On the fire
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station, I would agree with you--we, we already own land on the side ... so I would say if
this is coming from the current Fire-MR. MASUDA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --Department senior management, I wouldn't put much stock in
that. .. because I won't support that ... (inaudible) . ..
MR. MASUDA: We would be willing to license an extra area in back of the ...the station... for
the new pumper truck, for them to cover the new pumper truck. But it won't be ...
. . . a long-tenn lease, but more oflicense to ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: License to occupy?
MR. MASUDA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. On that, and then the other one you mentioned
about. ..Parks, Fire ... the Open Space Fund, I would agree with you. In fact, we would, I
would, we would ask you ... that we would look at Dole Park ...
MR. MASUDA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... as something that we would consider having under the County's
full ownership and control.
MR. MASUDA: Uh-huh.
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . And then, well, landfill. .. we were already started--you
know ... the County and the Company was already starting discussions on a new site
downwind of the, the road system. So that's going on right now. And then on the
sewer ...
. . . issues ... and the drainage, I think that's something that we're gonna be working with
Mr. Arakawa and Public Works.
MR. MASUDA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But, but that's been submitted right?
MR. MASUDA: Yeah.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
. . . Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I guess he gave you the update. My question is that
if I. .. whatever you said tonight, if I could have you put something in writing
.. .(laughter) . .. and submit it to the... to me for. .. the Committee? I, I wanna follow-up
on some of the things that you provided the County...which we haven't done anything in
regards to, you know, the resources, the monies, the land. Because it's something new
that. .. to me, that I didn't realize that your Company had provided the County of
Maui ...with. So if, if you could provide me some of the things that you mentioned
tonight-MR. MASUDA: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --because I, too, like Member Hokama... you know, I, I get
agitated...we haven't acted on any of these things. So if you could, I would appreciate
it. Members, any more questions?
... Thank you.
MR. MASUDA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh... we do have one more testifier. And I know, Member Victorino,
if you can hang on for a while ... Mary, if you would come up and provide your
testimony?
MS. KAUKEANO, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Thank you. Sorry, I'm late. I was at practice.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Kaukeano approached.

MS. KAUKEANO: ... Hi, my name's Mary Lou Kaukeano. I coach the Lanai High tennis
team. And also we have an association, the Lanai City Tennis Association. Just for your
information, we have 26 kids on our tennis team, our high school tennis team. We have
two courts. At practice over here... across from the parking lot. .. they really need to be
resurfaced. Our wind screens are ripped. We have two other courts on 5th Street. .. but
they're in bad shape. No wind screens or anything. The hotel down at Manele gives us
two courts. I have to move my boys team down to Manele. For instance, tomorrow, we
play Kamehameha... from Maui. I have to have my boys down at Manele and my girls
up here ...up here. So I have to ... try and be at two places, which is impossible.
Uh... so if we could possibly get our courts fixed, that would really help us out. The
hotel is really good enough to, to let us play down there. They've been really great the
last couple years, three years that I've been coaching that they give us the Koele courts or
the Manele eourts. We've got a pretty good program. I don't know if you know the MIL
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we're, the girls are in second place and the boys are in third for not even having a tennis
club here. SO ... your help would be appreciated. And if you ain't doing nothing next
Saturday, we have opening of Little League on Lanai, so come support our Lanai Little
League, too.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yea .. .(laughter} ...
MS. KAUKEANO: Thanks.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
· .. If not, thank you very much. Um-AUDIENCE: .. . (applause). ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Oh...Mr. Hokama has a comment for everyone.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: This is not for, for the residents. The residents know about this.
This is for the Committee, Chairman. The two courts on 5th Street was built by the State
for the school.
· . . How it ends up in the County's responsibility and County's maintenance and the
County's funds now ... to maintain what the State built for the school. . .is besides me.
But that's the reality. State built it, was for the school, and now it's County's
responsibility.
· .. That does not make me too happy.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Thank you, Mr. Hokama. We all understand where you coming
from in regards to ...the State. Whenever they do things, it kind of passed on to the
County to upkeep and, you know, the facilities which we feel is ...not right. Again .. .is
there anyone out there that wanna provide public testimony that hasn't yet?
· . . If not, I wanna thank the community for being here tonight to provide public
testimony on the 2008 Budget.

.. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any comments?
· .. If not, this meeting is adjourned ... (gavel) . ..
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AUDIENCE: ... (applause and cheers) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER _ _ : Thank you.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: MA, JJ, DAM, and MJM)
ACTION:
ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

8:00p.m.

APPROVED:

Transcribed by: Camille Sakamoto
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